
Page 1 of 3 

 

 City Council Meeting and Workshop 

April 4, 2016 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
 

5:30 P.M.  Joint Workshop – City Council and School Committee 

A. School Budget Presentation – Katy Grondin and Jude Cyr (60 minutes).  

 

6:30 P.M. Workshop – City Council  

 

B. Executive Session regarding a personnel matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A §405 (6)(A)-(30 minutes).  

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Burns 

 

Pledge of Allegiance  

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one 

motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If 

requested, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the 

agenda.   

 

1. Order 19-04042016* 

Setting the date for the School Budget Validation Referendum Election for June 14, 2016. 

 

2. Order 20-04042016* 

Approving the time to open the polls at 7:00 A.M. for the June 14, 2016 Election. 

 

II.    Minutes   

 March 21, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

 

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions 

 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Budget presentation – Reine Mynahan 

IV.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 

to City business which is not on this agenda.                                   

    

V. Unfinished Business  

 

1. Ordinance 04-03212016 

Adopting the ordinance regarding parking standards for junk cars. Public hearing and second 
reading. 
 

VI. New Business 

Hearing on the appeal of the denial of a business license for Indeego Spa (owner Lanli Liu) pursuant 

Chapter 14 Section 14-39 (a). Executive Session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405 (6)(G). 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 April 4, 2016 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

2. Order 21-04042016 
Approving the issuance of a Special Amusement and Liquor license to Firehouse Grill located at 47 

Broad Street. Public Hearing. 

 

VII. Executive Session 

o Executive Session regarding a real estate matter (Auburn Intermodal/Port of Auburn), 

pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A §405 (6)(C) with possible action to follow.  

 

VIII. Reports 

 

1. Mayors Report  

 

2. City Councilors’ Reports  

 

3. City Manager’s Report  

    

IX.  Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 

to City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 

discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 

must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 
that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 

categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 
A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 

resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 

complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  
(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 

individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted in 

open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 
education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session if 

the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests therein 

or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining 
position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 

parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 

settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 

clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a 
substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records is 

prohibited by statute; 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 April 4, 2016 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 
1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject:   FY17 School Budget Presentation 

 

Information:  The City Council and School Committee will discuss the proposed School Budget for FY17. 

 

Advantages:   

 

Disadvantages:  
 

City Budgetary Impacts:  

 

Staff Recommended Action: Discussion 

 

 

Previous Meetings and History: 3/14/2016 Joint Workshop (CIP) 

 

Attachments: None 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: 4/4/2016    

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: 04/04/2016  

 

  Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding a personnel matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(A). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject: Setting June 14, 2016 as the date for the Special School Budget Validation Referendum Election 

 

Information:  

Title M.R.S.A. 20-A, Section 2307 requires Municipalities to conduct a School Budget Validation Referendum 

Election each year. 

 

 

Advantages: There is a cost savings by holding the School Budget election at the same time as the State 

Election. There is also better voter turnout by holding both elections at the same time.  

 

Disadvantages: Not necessarily a disadvantage, but if the School Budget Referendum fails, the next election 

would likely be held at the end of July and failure to approve by July 1 allows operation using the latest budget 

approved by the City Council until a budget receives final approval.  

 

City Budgetary Impacts: There is a cost savings of approximately $1,500 by holding this election on the same 

date as the State Election. 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage of this order. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

Attachments: Order 19-04042016 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: 4/4/2016  Order 19-04042016* 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 

Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 

Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 19-04042016 

 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby sets the date for the School Budget Validation Referendum 

Election to be Tuesday, June 14, 2016, in conjunction with the State Primary Election. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject: Setting the time for opening the polls for the June 14, 2016 Election 

 

Information:  

State law requires the Municipal Officers to set the time to open the polls for each election. The polls must be 

opened no earlier than 6 a.m. and no later than 8 a.m. on election day, except that in municipalities with a 

population of less than 500, the polls must be opened no later than 10:00 a.m. It is recommended that the polls 

open at 7:00 A.M. in Auburn for the June 14, 2016 Election. 

 

§626. Polling times  

The following provisions apply to polling times at any election.  

1. Opening time flexible.  The polls must be opened no earlier than 6 a.m. and no later than 8 a.m. on 

election day, except that in municipalities with a population of less than 500, the polls must be opened no 

later than 10:00 a.m. The municipal officers of each municipality shall determine the time of opening the 

polls within these limits. The municipal clerk shall notify the Secretary of State of the poll opening times at 

least 30 days before each election conducted under this Title.  
 

 

 

Advantages:  Opening the polls at 7:00 A.M. is consistent with past practice in Auburn and it allows additional 

time in the morning for people to have an opportunity to vote. 

 

 

Disadvantages: It is a long day for City Clerk staff and Election Workers who are working the full day. 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: Minimal – the cost for Election workers to start one hour early (under $100).   

 

Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage of this order. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

Attachments:  

Title 21-A Sec. 626 

Order 20-04042016 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: 04/04/2016  Order 20-04042016* 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 



Generated
12.10.2015   |  1

Maine Revised Statutes

Title 21-A: ELECTIONS

Chapter 9: CONDUCT OF ELECTIONS

§626. POLLING TIMES
The following provisions apply to polling times at any election. [1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW).]

1. Opening time flexible.  The polls must be opened no earlier than 6 a.m. and no later than 8 a.m. on
election day, except that in municipalities with a population of less than 500, the polls must be opened no
later than 10:00 a.m. The municipal officers of each municipality shall determine the time of opening the polls
within these limits. The municipal clerk shall notify the Secretary of State of the poll opening times at least 30
days before each election conducted under this Title.

[ 2011, c. 342, §18 (AMD) .]

2. Closing time fixed.  The polls must be closed at 8 p.m. on election day, except in municipalities of
population less than 100 which may close the polls after all registered voters have voted.

A. The warden shall give all voters present at the voting place at closing time the opportunity to vote.
Any person who arrives at the voting place after the time for closing the polls has passed may not vote.
[1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW).]

[ 1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW);  1985, c. 277, (AMD) .]

3. Polling times in election notice.  The municipal clerk shall state the times of opening and closing the
polls in the notice of the election.

[ 1997, c. 436, §89 (AMD) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW).  1985, c. 277, (AMD).  1985, c. 580, (AMD). 
1997, c. 436, §§88,89 (AMD).  2011, c. 342, §18 (AMD).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include the
following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects changes
made through the First Regular Session of the 127th Maine Legislature and is current through October 15, 2015. The text is subject to
change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our goal
is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve
the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 

Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 

Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 20-04042016 

 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby sets the time for opening the polls for the June 14, 2016 Election to be 

7:00 AM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

Subject:   FFY2016 Annual Action Plan 

 

Information:  Attached is the Community Development Program budget for FFY2016.  This is Auburn’s 42nd 

year of receiving Community Development Block Grant funds, and 15th year for the HOME consortium 

whereby the grant is shared with the City of Lewiston.  The proposed budget for FFY2016 is $1,181,768 for 

Community Development Block Grant and $815,249 for HOME Investment Partnerships Program funds.  The 

Community Development allocation has been reduced by $9,495 since last year, and the HOME allocation is 

lower by $5,558.  This budget will implement the second year of strategies and outcomes of the 2015-19 

Consolidated  Plan.   

 

The Citizen’s Advisory Committee met on March 30th to review the proposed budget and provide comments.  

The meeting record, including their suggestions and budget recommendations, is incorporated in the budget 

package.    

 

A public hearing should be held on May 2
nd

.  

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM:   
 

Funding for activities is similar to last year’s budget with the exception of a higher allocation for the Small 

Business and Commercial Loan Programs, and a reduced amount for home weatherization.  Funds are reserved 

for a sidewalk improvement project at a location that has not yet been determined.  The community garden 

budget is mostly for maintenance at the Webster Street garden to replenish materials/supplies and the remainder 

to cover the cost of a garden coordinator.  The garden committee is working on a proposal to open a second 

garden the summer of 2018.  

 

Social Services come under the Consolidated Plan’s anti-poverty strategy, support people in their efforts to 

transition out of poverty.  The direction of this strategy is “helping young people growing up in poverty to get 

the personal and educational skills needed to live a healthy and productive adult life” or “to help adults to 

successfully provide for themselves and their families through education and development of employment 

skills”.   A Request for Proposals was issued in December requesting a response to these strategies.  A 

subcommittee of the Citizens Advisory Committee reviewed the proposals that were submitted and 

recommended funding the levels that are incorporated in this budget.  

 

HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM:   
 

The HOME grant includes funding for all four eligible activities, homebuyer, homeowner rehab, tenant based 

rental assistance as well as a new rental housing program.    

 

Last spring the City Council voted to commit $250,000 to Auburn Housing Development Corporation for a 

housing development at 62 Spring Street.  Other funding needed to build this project has not yet been secured.  

Until all funding sources for the project are committed and we have completed our due diligence, we cannot 

technically “commit” these funds with HUD.  As a result we will not meet one of the program regulations, to 

commitment HOME funds within 24 months of award.  In the meantime, we must find interim projects to which 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 4, 2016    

Author:   Reine Mynahan, Community Development Director 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

we can commit these funds.  We intend to purchase and rehabilitate two properties.  Once the rehabilitation 

effort is complete, the buildings will be sold to income qualified homebuyers, and the funds from these sales 

will be returned to fulfill the commitment to the Spring Street property.    Attached is an Amendment to the 

Commitment Letter that allows the City to utilize these funds on a substitute project and return them at a later 

date.   Consideration for this amendment to the commitment letter will be a separate order for City Council 

action on May 16. 

 

The budget includes a new program, Staying Home, a rental assistance program that attempts to lower the 

student school transfer rate.  The program will assist tenants who are at risk of eviction to stay in their 

apartments so that students can remain in their current school. 

 

SCHEDULE FOR COMPLETION OF ANNUAL ACTION PLAN: 

 

The submission deadline for the Annual Action Plan is 45 days prior to the beginning of the new program year.  

With the new committee review process, this initial review was delayed.  This year’s Annual Action Plan will 

be submitted late in order to meet the federally prescribed citizen participation requirements.  A letter 

explaining the circumstances has been submitted to the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 

Listed below are critical dates for this year’s submission. 

 

Public Notice/Action Plan Availability/30 day Comment Period Begins   April 8 

Public Hearing/City Council         May 2 

Comment Period Ends         May 9 

Adoption by City Council         May 16 

Submission to HUD          May 25 

 

 

Advantages:   Supports the 2015-19 Consolidated Plan strategies and anticipated outputs 

 

Disadvantages:  none 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: Funding covers the majority of the Planning Department’s code enforcement 

position that was formerly funded through the General Fund.   

 

Staff Recommended Action:  Guidance on Annual Action Plan and budget. 

 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Budget review by the Economic and Community Development Committee. 

 

Attachments:  FFY2016 Annual Action Plan/Budget 

  Amendment to Commitment Letter 

 



















































AMENDMENT TO COMMITMENT LETTER 
 

 THIS AMENDMENT TO COMMITMENT LETTER dated this ____ day of May 2016  by 

and between the CITY OF AUBURN, a Maine body corporate and politic with a place of business 

and mailing address of 60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine 04240 (the “City”) and AUBURN 

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Maine nonprofit corporation with a place of 

business in Auburn, Maine and mailing address of P.O. Box 3037, Auburn, Maine 04212-3037 

(“Borrower”) 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, the commitment letter from the City to Borrower dated September 30, 2015 for 

financing in an amount up to $250,000 (the “Commitment”) expires on or about July 31, 2016; and  

 

 WHEREAS, AHDC has not obtained the additional financing necessary to  commence 

construction of the project known as  62 Spring Street;   

 

 NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 

 1.  The expiration date of the Commitment as set forth at Page 11 of the Commitment  is 

hereby extended to July 31, 2017, subject to the following conditions:  (a) At the City's sole 

discretion, disbursement of loan proceeds may be changed from $125,000 at 50% Project completion 

and $125,000 at 100% completion to $250,000 at 100% Project completion in order to allow for the 

City's revolving fund to be replenished with the funds necessary to make the disbursement, and (b) 

the construction of improvements shall be commenced by October 2017 and shall be completed by 

September 30, 2018. 

 

 2. The Commitment as modified hereby remains in full force and effect and the parties 

ratify and affirm their obligations to one another thereunder.   

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to Commitment letter to 

be executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the day and year set forth above. 

 

WITNESS:      CITY OF AUBURN   

 

 

__________________________________  By:________________________________ 

        Reine Mynahan, Community  

        Development Director 

 

       AUBURN HOUSING DEVELOPMENT  

       CORPORATION, Borrower 

 

 

 

__________________________________  By:________________________________ 

        Richard S. Whiting, its Secretary 

 
O:\MAS\II\03350 AHDC\City loan\AMENDMENT TO COMMITMENT LETTER.docx 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject: Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Regarding Junk Cars 

 

Information:  The Planning and Development Office worked with the Office of Community Development on a 

series of City Code and Zoning Ordinance text amendments related to issues of property maintenance.  This 

specific text amendment addresses junk cars.  The proposed amendment to the zoning ordinance would 

eliminate the ambiguous wording of “inoperable” and “unlicensed” terms and replace them with “uninspected” 

and “unregistered”, which is easier to verify and consistent with the State automobile-graveyard law.  The 

change will help the enforcement process.  The goal of this text amendment is to improve the appearance of 

neighborhoods by removing junk vehicles and help to create a more attractive and desirable place to live.   

 

Advantages:  Adopting the proposed text amendment will make it easier for Code Enforcement officers to 

enforce junk cars regulations by removing ambiguous language that could be challenged.  Removing junk cars 

will help improve the appearance of individual properties, the surrounding neighborhoods and Auburn in 

general. 

Disadvantages:  Removing unsightly junk cars may be perceived by violators as government intrusion on 

individual property rights. 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: No direct budgetary impacts.  Removing junk cars may actually slightly improve 

property values over time. 

 

 

Staff Recommended Action: The Staff and Planning Board recommend approval of the text amendment. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: This text amendment and other proposed code violation changes were 

presented to the City Council at a February 8, 2016 workshop.  The Planning Board held a public hearing on 

March 8, 2016. Passage of first reading on 3/21/2016. 

 

 

Attachments:  

1. Planning Board Report on the Text Amendment from their March 8, 2016 meeting and public hearing. 

2. Draft Text Amendment 

3. Draft Ordinance 04-03212016 

 

 

 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 4, 2016  Ordinance 04-03212016 

Author:   Eric Cousens, Deputy Director, Economic Development and Planning 



City of Auburn, Maine 

 Office of Planning & Development 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

To: Mayor LaBonte and Auburn City Council 

 

From: Douglas M. Greene, AICP, RLA; City Planner 

 

Date: March 17, 2016 

 

RE: Planning Board Report on a Text Amendment to Article V (Parking) Relating to Junk 

 Vehicles 

 

 

The Planning Board is required to review and make recommendations to the City Council on text 

amendments to the Auburn Zoning Ordinance.  At their March 8, 2016 meeting, a public hearing 

was held to present changes to Article V, Parking, that proposed changes to off-street parking 

standards of the zoning ordinances relating to controlling “junk” vehicles on residential 

properties.  The proposed amendments to the zoning ordinance would eliminate the ambiguous 

wording of “inoperable” and “unlicensed” terms and replace them with “uninspected” and 

“unregistered”, which is easier to verify and consistent with the State automobile-graveyard law. 

 

BACKGROUND:   

The Planning and Development Office worked with the Office of Community Development on a 

series of City Code and Zoning Ordinance text amendments related to issues of property 

maintenance.  The goal of this text amendment is to improve the appearance of neighborhoods 

by removing junk vehicles and thereby, create a more attractive and desirable place to live.  The 

changes would also help to improve the enforcement process.  

 

MARCH 8
th

 MEETING SUMMARY:   

The Staff presented the text amendment to the Planning Board on March 8, 2016.  There were no 

questions from the Planning Board.  The public hearing portion of the agenda item was opened 

and no one from the public was present or commented.  The Planning Board voted unanimously 

7-0 to forward a favorable recommendation of the text amendment to the City Council.  

 

RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL:  

The Auburn Planning Board recommends the City Council adopt the proposed text amendment 

to Article V, Parking, Section 60-607, General provisions and Design Standards as shown in the 

attached draft.  

 

 

 

C:  Eric Cousens, Deputy Director, Planning and Development 

` File  



March 17, 2016 

 

  Page 1 

Sec. 60-607. - General provisions and design standards.  

Development of the parking and loading spaces required by this section is subject to the following 
general provisions and design standards:  

(1) There shall be provided, at the time of erection of any main building or structure or development 
of a site in its permitted use, the minimum number of off-street parking and loading spaces 
specified in the following subsections, within or without a structure. In calculating the spaces, 
any fractions shall be rounded to the nearest whole number.  

(2) Each individual parking space shall consist of an effective area of nine feet by 18 feet in 
dimension and shall be accessible to a public way, except for residential uses in Multifamily 
Urban Districts (MFU) containing five or more dwelling units. Such uses may develop tandem 
parking spaces but shall be limited to not more than two vehicles in depth.  

(3) Loading spaces shall have the following dimensions: 

a. Buildings having a gross floor area of 10,000 square feet or less: 25-foot length, 20-foot 
width;  

b. Buildings having a gross floor area of greater than 10,000 square feet: 50-foot length, ten-
foot width. Each loading space shall have a vertical clearance of at least 14 feet. Required 
loading spaces shall not be counted as meeting part of the parking space requirements.  

(4) Interior driveways and ingress and egress points serving parking areas shall be at least 20 feet 
in width to allow safe and expeditious movement of vehicles. Ingress and egress points shall be 
separated wherever possible and so signed. Ingress and egress points for one-way vehicular 
movement only, may be reduced to not less than 14 feet for angle parking areas or 12 feet for 
perpendicular parking areas.  

(5) The required parking and/or loading spaces shall be provided on the same lot as the principal 
use, building or structure they are required to serve. For buildings other than dwellings, parking 
spaces may be located not more than 300 feet there from should practical difficulties prevent 
their provision on the same lot.  

(6) No required parking area or driveways servicing same shall be used for the sale, repair, 
dismantling or servicing of any vehicle, equipment, material, supplies or merchandise.  

(7) In On any residential districtproperty or in any residential district, outdoor off-street parking may 
include the parking or storage of not more than one inoperable unregistered or uninspected 
motor vehicle per lot. If also unlicensed a vehicle is both unregistered and uninspected, the 
vehicle must be stored within a building.  

(8) In any residential district, off-street parking may include not more than one commercial vehicle 
per lot.  

(9) In any residential district, no portion of the front yard space, other than the driveway, shall be 
utilized for off-street parking.  

(10) Any parking or loading space serving a business or industrial use which abuts the side or rear 
lot line of a lot in a residential district or use shall be screened from said lot by a tight evergreen 
shrub hedge or similar landscaping, a fence, a solid wall or a combination of two or more of the 
foregoing. The screen landscaping, wall or fence shall be at least six feet high and may be 
extended no closer than 15 feet from the street line.  

(11) Exterior lighting provided in any parking or loading area shall be arranged and shielded so that it 
is deflected away from adjacent properties used for residential purposes and from any public 
highway.  

(12) All uses containing over five parking and/or loading spaces shall either contain such spaces 
within structures or be subject to the following requirements:  



March 17, 2016 

 

  Page 2 

a. All access drives, parking, loading and service spaces shall be graded and surfaced with a 
solid paving material that is impermeable to water and so as to be dust free and properly 
drained. Materials which satisfy this criteria include but are not limited to: bituminous 
pavement, concrete, geotextiles and brick or cobblestone or other paving block provided 
that it is mortared.  

b. Parking and loading spaces shall be suitably marked by painted lines or other appropriate 
markings.  

c. A substantial bumper of concrete, masonry, steel or heavy timber or a curb of similar 
material or an earthen berm shall be placed at the head of each parking or loading stall 
that abuts a structure, rear or side setback or property line, sidewalk, street right-of-way, or 
landscaped area to prevent vehicles from rolling into such areas.  

d. Where, in nonresidential districts, parking is planned to occupy a portion of the required 
front yard area, parking shall not be placed nearer than ten feet from the street right-of-way 
line. The area between the parking area and the street right-of-way line shall be 
landscaped.  

(13) Parking and loading spaces shall be so arranged as not to require backing of vehicles onto any 
public street. No loading platforms or receiving doors shall be located on the street side of any 
retail store or other commercial building unless such platforms or receiving doors be located not 
less than 60 feet from the sideline of any street right-of-way lines.  

(14) No portion of any entrance or exit driveway serving a residential use or building shall be closer 
than 50 feet from the nearest public street intersection unless prevented by dimensional or 
physical difficulties. No portion of any entrance or exit driveway serving a commercial or 
industrial use of building shall be closer than 100 feet from the nearest public street intersection 
unless prevented by dimensional or physical difficulties.  

(15) On lots where one entrance and exit driveway or curb-cut is constructed, the curb-cut shall not 
exceed 32 feet in width. Where two or more driveways or curb-cuts are constructed, the curb 
cuts shall not exceed 20 feet in width. For automotive service stations, the curb cut widths may 
be increased to 32 feet for each driveway or access, but shall not exceed two driveways. These 
widths may be increased up to a maximum of 44 feet on arterial roads if required by the city 
engineering department or the state department of transportation.  

(16) A parking lot cluster containing more than 80 stalls shall contain landscaped areas within the 
perimeter of the overall lot, in the form of landscaped perimeter and islands.  

(17) For those developments subject to site plan review (division 2 of article XVI of this chapter) the 
relaxation of the requirements of this section shall be reviewed by the planning board.  

(18) Required off-street parking in the Auburn Downtown Action Plan for Tomorrow area for lots 
which cannot provide their own parking because of location, lot size or existing development 
may be substituted by parking facilities which, in the public's interest may be provided for by the 
municipality or private parking resources. No such public or private off-street parking shall be 
considered as a substitute unless located within 1,000 feet of the principal building or use as 
measured along lines of public access.  

(19) In calculating the required number of off-street parking spaces, the gross leasable area shall be 
used.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 4.1A) 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 

Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 

Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

           

ORDINANCE  04-03212016 
 

 

Be it ordained by the Auburn City Council, that the Auburn Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Parking, Section 60-

607, General Provisions and Design Standards be amended as shown on the attached draft dated March 17, 

2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



March 17, 2016 

 

  Page 1 

Sec. 60-607. - General provisions and design standards.  

Development of the parking and loading spaces required by this section is subject to the following 
general provisions and design standards:  

(1) There shall be provided, at the time of erection of any main building or structure or development 
of a site in its permitted use, the minimum number of off-street parking and loading spaces 
specified in the following subsections, within or without a structure. In calculating the spaces, 
any fractions shall be rounded to the nearest whole number.  

(2) Each individual parking space shall consist of an effective area of nine feet by 18 feet in 
dimension and shall be accessible to a public way, except for residential uses in Multifamily 
Urban Districts (MFU) containing five or more dwelling units. Such uses may develop tandem 
parking spaces but shall be limited to not more than two vehicles in depth.  

(3) Loading spaces shall have the following dimensions: 

a. Buildings having a gross floor area of 10,000 square feet or less: 25-foot length, 20-foot 
width;  

b. Buildings having a gross floor area of greater than 10,000 square feet: 50-foot length, ten-
foot width. Each loading space shall have a vertical clearance of at least 14 feet. Required 
loading spaces shall not be counted as meeting part of the parking space requirements.  

(4) Interior driveways and ingress and egress points serving parking areas shall be at least 20 feet 
in width to allow safe and expeditious movement of vehicles. Ingress and egress points shall be 
separated wherever possible and so signed. Ingress and egress points for one-way vehicular 
movement only, may be reduced to not less than 14 feet for angle parking areas or 12 feet for 
perpendicular parking areas.  

(5) The required parking and/or loading spaces shall be provided on the same lot as the principal 
use, building or structure they are required to serve. For buildings other than dwellings, parking 
spaces may be located not more than 300 feet there from should practical difficulties prevent 
their provision on the same lot.  

(6) No required parking area or driveways servicing same shall be used for the sale, repair, 
dismantling or servicing of any vehicle, equipment, material, supplies or merchandise.  

(7) In On any residential districtproperty or in any residential district, outdoor off-street parking may 
include the parking or storage of not more than one inoperable unregistered or uninspected 
motor vehicle per lot. If also unlicensed a vehicle is both unregistered and uninspected, the 
vehicle must be stored within a building.  

(8) In any residential district, off-street parking may include not more than one commercial vehicle 
per lot.  

(9) In any residential district, no portion of the front yard space, other than the driveway, shall be 
utilized for off-street parking.  

(10) Any parking or loading space serving a business or industrial use which abuts the side or rear 
lot line of a lot in a residential district or use shall be screened from said lot by a tight evergreen 
shrub hedge or similar landscaping, a fence, a solid wall or a combination of two or more of the 
foregoing. The screen landscaping, wall or fence shall be at least six feet high and may be 
extended no closer than 15 feet from the street line.  

(11) Exterior lighting provided in any parking or loading area shall be arranged and shielded so that it 
is deflected away from adjacent properties used for residential purposes and from any public 
highway.  

(12) All uses containing over five parking and/or loading spaces shall either contain such spaces 
within structures or be subject to the following requirements:  



March 17, 2016 

 

  Page 2 

a. All access drives, parking, loading and service spaces shall be graded and surfaced with a 
solid paving material that is impermeable to water and so as to be dust free and properly 
drained. Materials which satisfy this criteria include but are not limited to: bituminous 
pavement, concrete, geotextiles and brick or cobblestone or other paving block provided 
that it is mortared.  

b. Parking and loading spaces shall be suitably marked by painted lines or other appropriate 
markings.  

c. A substantial bumper of concrete, masonry, steel or heavy timber or a curb of similar 
material or an earthen berm shall be placed at the head of each parking or loading stall 
that abuts a structure, rear or side setback or property line, sidewalk, street right-of-way, or 
landscaped area to prevent vehicles from rolling into such areas.  

d. Where, in nonresidential districts, parking is planned to occupy a portion of the required 
front yard area, parking shall not be placed nearer than ten feet from the street right-of-way 
line. The area between the parking area and the street right-of-way line shall be 
landscaped.  

(13) Parking and loading spaces shall be so arranged as not to require backing of vehicles onto any 
public street. No loading platforms or receiving doors shall be located on the street side of any 
retail store or other commercial building unless such platforms or receiving doors be located not 
less than 60 feet from the sideline of any street right-of-way lines.  

(14) No portion of any entrance or exit driveway serving a residential use or building shall be closer 
than 50 feet from the nearest public street intersection unless prevented by dimensional or 
physical difficulties. No portion of any entrance or exit driveway serving a commercial or 
industrial use of building shall be closer than 100 feet from the nearest public street intersection 
unless prevented by dimensional or physical difficulties.  

(15) On lots where one entrance and exit driveway or curb-cut is constructed, the curb-cut shall not 
exceed 32 feet in width. Where two or more driveways or curb-cuts are constructed, the curb 
cuts shall not exceed 20 feet in width. For automotive service stations, the curb cut widths may 
be increased to 32 feet for each driveway or access, but shall not exceed two driveways. These 
widths may be increased up to a maximum of 44 feet on arterial roads if required by the city 
engineering department or the state department of transportation.  

(16) A parking lot cluster containing more than 80 stalls shall contain landscaped areas within the 
perimeter of the overall lot, in the form of landscaped perimeter and islands.  

(17) For those developments subject to site plan review (division 2 of article XVI of this chapter) the 
relaxation of the requirements of this section shall be reviewed by the planning board.  

(18) Required off-street parking in the Auburn Downtown Action Plan for Tomorrow area for lots 
which cannot provide their own parking because of location, lot size or existing development 
may be substituted by parking facilities which, in the public's interest may be provided for by the 
municipality or private parking resources. No such public or private off-street parking shall be 
considered as a substitute unless located within 1,000 feet of the principal building or use as 
measured along lines of public access.  

(19) In calculating the required number of off-street parking spaces, the gross leasable area shall be 
used.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 4.1A) 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject:   Hearing on the appeal of the denial of a business license for Indeego Spa (owner Lanli Liu) 

pursuant Chapter 14 Section 14-39 (a). Executive Session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405 (6)(G). 

  
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: 4/4/2016    

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire 

  

  







City Council 

Information Sheet
City of Auburn 

Subject:     Liquor License and Special Amusement Request for Firehouse Grill, LLC., D/B/A Firehouse Grille 

Information: Firehouse Grill, LLC., D/B/A Firehouse Grill located at 47 Broad Street has changed ownership. 

The new owners are applying for a Liquor License, Class XI-Spirituous, Vinous, and Malt Restaurant/Lounge 

and a Special Amusement Permit. Police, Fire, and Code have completed the necessary inspections and have all 

granted approval.  

Advantages:  Will continue to attract additional patrons, both local and out of town and helps to promote 

Auburn as a business friendly community and a nice place to visit.  

Disadvantages: The potential for disorderly conduct. 

City Budgetary Impacts: None 

Staff Recommended Action: Public hearing and recommend passage. 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

Attachments: 

 Applications

 Background check

 Public Notice

 Order 21-04042016

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: April 04, 2016 Order 21-04042016 

 Author:   Alison F. Pepin 































































James Pross, Ward One  Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Stone, Ward Two Grady R. Burns, At Large 

Andy Titus, Ward Three David C. Young, At Large 

Ernestine Gilbert, Ward Four 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

Page 1 of 1 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

ORDER 21-04042016 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Liquor License, Class XI Spirituous, Vinous, and Malt 
Restaurant/Lounge and Special Amusement Permit for Firehouse Grill, LLC., D/B/A Firehouse Grille located at 
47 Broad Street. 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: 04/04/2016  

 

  Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding an real estate matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  


	0  Agenda 04-04-2016
	1  Information Sheet School Budget
	2  Workshop Executive Session info sheet
	3  Information Sheet Set date for SBVR Election
	3a  Order 19-04042016 setting the date for the School Budget Election
	4  Information Sheet Set time for Election
	4a  title21-Asec626
	4b  Order 20-04042016 Set the Time for Opening the Polls
	5  Minutes 3-21-2016
	6  Info Sheet - 2016 Annual Action Plan Presentation
	6a  FY2016 Budget Presentation
	6b  Amendment to Commitment Letter
	7  Information Sheet Junk Cars
	7a  CC 3-21-16 meeting Junk Cars Materials
	7b  Chapter 60_OFF STREET PARKING_with amendments
	8  Info sheet - Hearing on Appeal Indeego Spa
	8a  Indeego Spa Letter to Appeal Denial
	8b  Indeego Spa signed notice of hearing
	9  Info Sheet Firehouse Grill
	9a  Firehouse Grill Application
	9b  Order Firehouse Grill
	10  Executive Session Real Estate Matter
	Flea Market Application



